CABINET
Monday, 6th June, 2022
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Cabinet, which will be held at:

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Monday, 6th June, 2022
at 7.00 pm .
G. Blakemore
Chief Executive
Democratic Services
Officer

A. Hendry (Democratic Services)
Tel: (01992) 564246 Email:
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:
Councillors C Whitbread (Leader of the Council & Leader of the Conservative Group)
(Chairman), , N Bedford, N Avey, L Burrows, S Kane, A Lion, A Patel, J Philip, H Whitbread
and K Williamson

PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS TO ATTEND

1.

WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
This meeting is to be webcast and Members are reminded of the need to activate
their microphones before speaking.
The Chairman will read the following announcement:
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to
the Internet and will be capable of subsequent repeated viewing, with copies of the
recording being made available for those that request it.
By being present at this meeting, it is likely that the recording cameras will capture
your image and this will result in your image becoming part of the broadcast.

1

Cabinet

Monday, 6 June 2022

You should be aware that this may infringe your human and data protection rights. If
you have any concerns then please speak to the Webcasting Officer.
Please could I also remind Members to activate their microphones before speaking.”
2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To be announced at the meeting.

Please use the Members Portal webpage to report non-attendance at meetings
https://eppingforestdc-self.achieveservice.com/service/Member_Contact to ensure
your query is properly logged.
Alternatively, you can access the Members portal from the front page of the
Council’s website, at the bottom under ‘Contact Us’
https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/your-council/members-portal/

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

4.

MINUTES (Pages 5 - 14)
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 11 April 2022.

5.

REPORTS OF PORTFOLIO HOLDERS
To receive oral reports from Portfolio Holders on current issues concerning their
Portfolios, which are not covered elsewhere on this agenda.

6.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE CABINET
To receive any questions submitted by members of the public and any requests to
address the Cabinet.
(a)

Public Questions

To answer questions asked by members of the public after notice in accordance with
the provisions contained within Part 4 of the Constitution (Council Rules, Rule Q3)
on any matter in relation to which the Cabinet has powers or duties or which affects
the District.
(b)

Requests to Address the Cabinet

Any member of the public or a representative of another organisation may address
the Cabinet on any agenda item (except those dealt with in private session as
exempt or confidential business) due to be considered at the meeting, in accordance
with the provisions contained within Article 7 of the Constitution (The Executive,
Paragraphs 27 and 28).
2

Cabinet

7.

Monday, 6 June 2022

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
To consider any matters of concern to the Cabinet arising from the Council’s
Overview and Scrutiny function and to identify any matters that the Cabinet would
like the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to examine as part of its work
programme.

8.

DIRECT AWARD OF THE PRINT TO POST CONTRACT (Pages 15 - 26)
Corporate Services (C-001-2022-23) - decision to award a contract with a total value
of over £1m when totalled over the life of the contract.

9.

REPURCHASE OF LEASEHOLD PROPERTIES ON LIME ESTATE (Pages 27 38)
Housing & Community (C-002-2022-23) – to agree to the proposed repurchase of up
to 5 flats on the Limes and Copperfield estate.

10.

QUALIS QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT - Q2 2021/22 (Pages 39 - 58)
Finance – (C-003-2021-22) – to consider the second Quarter’s monitoring report for
the Qualis trading year 2021/22, covering 1st January 2022 to 31st March 2022.

11.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6
and 24 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that
the permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive,
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary
agenda of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee. Two weeks' notice of non-urgent
items is required.

12.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
Exclusion
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business
set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):
Agenda Item No

Subject

Nil

Nil

Exempt Information
Paragraph Number
Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining
the exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
3

Cabinet

Monday, 6 June 2022

information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least
24 hours prior to the meeting.
Background Papers
Article 17 of the Constitution (Access to Information) define background papers as
being documents relating to the subject matter of the report which in the Proper
Officer's opinion:
(a)

disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

(b)

have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information and in respect of executive reports, the advice of any political
advisor.

The Council will make available for public inspection one copy of each of the
documents on the list of background papers for four years after the date of the
meeting. Inspection of background papers can be arranged by contacting either the
Responsible Officer or the Democratic Services Officer for the particular item.

4

Agenda Item 4
EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES
Committee:

Cabinet

Place:

Council Chamber,
High Street, Epping

Members
Present:

Councillors C Whitbread (Chairman), N Avey, N Bedford, L Burrows, J Philip,
D Sunger and H Whitbread

Members
Present
(Virtually):

Councillors

Other
Councillors:

Councillors A Lion, M Sartin and D Stocker

Other
Councillors
(Virtual):

Councillors S Heap, C McCredie, S Murray, C C Pond, Caroline Pond and
J M Whitehouse

Apologies:

A Patel and S Kane

Officers
Present:

G Blakemore (Chief Executive), N Cole (Corporate Communications Officer),
A Hendry (Democratic Services Officer), A Small (Strategic Director
Corporate and 151 Officer) and M Thompson (Service Manager (Technical))
F Edmonds (Climate Change Officer), L Kirman (Democratic Services
Officer), S Lloyd-Jones (Sustainable Transport Officer), P Maginnis (Service
Director (Corporate Services)), and N Richardson (Service Director (Planning
Services))

Officers
Present
(Virtually):

Also in
Attendance
(Virtully):
123.

Civic

Offices,

Date:

Monday, 11 April 2022

Time:

7.02 - 8.19 pm

N Linihan (Consultant)

Webcasting Introduction
The Leader of Council made a short address to remind everyone present that the
meeting would be broadcast live to the internet, and would be capable of repeated
viewing, which could infringe their human and data protection rights.

124.

Declarations of Interest

(a)
Pursuant to the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor S
Murray declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda items 8, Climate Change
Action Plan and item 10, Partnership Agreement for the delivery of site access
management and monitoring measures for the Epping Forest Special Area of
Conservation; by virtue of being a member of Friends of Epping Forest,
ambassador for the Epping Forest Heritage Trust and a member of Loughton
Town Council.
(b)
Pursuant to the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor Jon
Whitehouse declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 10, Partnership

Page 5

1

Cabinet

Monday, 11 April 2022

Agreement for the delivery of site access management and monitoring
measures for the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation; by virtue of
being a committee member of a sports club that uses the recreation ground.
125.

Minutes
Decision:
That the minutes of the Cabinet meetings held on 7 March 2022 be taken as read
and would be signed by the Leader as a correct record.

126.

Reports of Portfolio Holders
There were no verbal reports made by Members of the Cabinet on current issues
affecting their areas of responsibility.

127.

Public Questions and Requests to Address the Cabinet
The Cabinet noted that no public questions or requests to address the Cabinet had
been received for consideration at the meeting.

128.

Overview and Scrutiny
The Chairman of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee reported that at their last
meeting they had received a presentation from the Youth Council; they also reviewed
the Partnership Agreement for the delivery of site access management and
monitoring measures for the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation which they
supported; and considered the Climate Change Action Plan consultation. They also
reviewed their draft annual report and the various work programmes of the select
committees.

129.

Climate Change Action Plan
The Portfolio Holder for Planning and Sustainability, Councillor Bedford, introduced
the report. He noted that the Climate Change Action Plan stated the steps to be
taken to deliver on the Climate Emergency that was declared on 19 September 2019
with the motion to do everything within the Council's power to make Epping Forest
District Council area carbon neutral by 2030. The plan aligned with the corporate
objectives of keeping the district moving sustainably and enabling residents to
access new opportunities for employment, and to reduce the carbon footprint across
the district and within our council. There were also links to the environmental and
sustainable travel Policies T1, DM 2 and DM15-22 in the Emerging Local Plan.
The Climate Change Action plan also had direct and indirect links with further policy
and projects throughout the Council, for example, the Roding Valley and North Weald
Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace projects that would be brought forward in
Summer/Autumn 2022 and also a further review of the Waste contract.
This report provided members with a summary of the objectives and purpose of the
Climate Change Action Plan and a summary of the changes made following the
public consultation period.
For context, in August 2021, the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)
published the ‘Climate Change 2021 Report: The Physical Science Basis’. The report
gave evidence to show the ‘widespread and rapid’ changes to our climate that have
occurred as a result of human influence. It then gave further evidence on the wide-

Page 6

2

Cabinet

Monday, 11 April 2022

ranging and severe impacts of global warming where temperatures reach 1.5C above
pre-industrial levels. In November 2021 the Glasgow Climate Pact was agreed at the
COP26 Climate Change Conference. The aim of the pact was to keep alive the hope
of limiting the rise in global temperature to 1.5C, as previously agreed in the 2015
Paris Agreement, and increase climate ambition and action from countries.
The Climate Change Action Plan examined the main sources of carbon emissions
both within the Councils own operations and across the District. It outlined direct
action the Council were taking to reduce emissions of its own activities. As well as
steps that could be taken to facilitate and influence emissions reductions in the wider
District, enabling the area to become carbon neutral by 2030.
Reaching this target would be a considerable task involving collaboration and
engagement from staff, residents, businesses, suppliers, and partners, along with
policy support from the UK Government. The plan will be regularly updated to
account for further developments in national legislation, regulation, technology, and
policy. Where activities and monitoring were to be confirmed these will be updated
following consultation feedback.
Councillor Philip said it was a good comprehensive report. He noted the action plan
and that a vast majority of emissions come from transport and that a lot of these
came from the M25 and M11, which we had no control over. The actions called for in
the report to reduce travel within the district would not have any effect on the
motorways. We did need to look at this, but he noted that we had little control.
Councillor Bedford noted that the M25 was probably the most difficult challenge, but
drivers on the M11would also now come to the end and hit the congestion charges in
London. This also means that residents from this district are changing vehicles as
fast as they can which was reflected by recent figures so hopefully the next time, we
do some monitoring, emission would show a decline within the district. We were also
looking at ways to monitor the M25 and M11.
Councillor H Whitbread asked if we were working with Essex County Council (ECC)
on this as they were doing similar work to us and if we were collaborating with any
other organisations. Councillor Bedford replied that, they were working with other
organisations such as the Corporation of London and other linked in organisations as
well as ECC.
Councillor Sunger commented that given that social media was very powerful were
we using it to publicise our message? He was told that it had been widely publicised,
that officers have had conversations with the Youth Council and other groups. Social
Media was part of their campaign to drive forward the educational side of it.
Councillor Lion commented that the air mitigation strategy stated that it was thought
that the majority of pollution was caused by local traffic. Could we get some evidence
in the form of figures on this assertion? And, as public transport was essential, so
was electric charging; we would need to work closely with Essex Council whose
responsibility was for on-street charging points. This was something to look at, as he
had started looking into this six years ago and the Council had not made much
progress since. Councillor Bedford replied that a large source of pollution data in the
district came from work done in 2016/17 using ANPR system. The next air samples
would be taken in 2024/25. As for on street charging, we have had a couple of
meetings with some outside companies regarding what they could provide for the
district. We were still in the discussion stages. It had been estimated that we would
need about 500 on street charging points in the district. If we put them in, we would
then need a 24/7 monitoring system to ensure they were all working, and no broken
ones were left to long without being repaired.

Page 7

3

Cabinet

Monday, 11 April 2022

Councillor Murray said we would need to get them in as soon as possible as this was
important. We also needed to get on with energy efficiency on council estates and in
social housing. Then there was also bus usage, which may not be something we had
direct control over but was something we could advocate for. And, on encouraging
active travel to schools to address the impact of school traffic and promote school
streets. He noted that there was a school in Loughton actively seeking to promote
having a school street. And lastly, on the campaign on raising the awareness on air
pollution on the SAC. He noted that local people were not aware of the importance of
the forest and the consequences of air pollution. Councillor Bedford asked if
Councillor Murray could speak to Loughton Town Council to put together an
education leaflet or set up a website for local school use on the importance of the
forest.
Councillor Chris Pond welcomed the report. He noted the points made about the M25
& M11 and that they were major players in the ecology of Epping forest district and
the SAC. It was said that the traffic around Wakes Farm was largely local, but this did
not apply when either motorway was closed, and these roads were used as unofficial
diversions which would increase the pollution. If anything could be done to avoid this
happening it should be explored. He noted that there was no mention of embodied
carbon and the demolition of buildings which should be mentioned in the report.
There was also no mention in the action plan about the Lea Valley Regional Park and
other similar organisations which should be more closely involved. And finally, the
Roding Valley and the possible application as a SANG, but the correct procedures
must be followed for this as it’s on a 125-year lease to Loughton Town Council, but
they have not had any communications about this. Councillor Bedford commented on
the delays caused when the M25 was shut, and traffic came through the district and
principally the Wakes Arms. This was something outside of our control although it
happened on a regular basis. As for pollution from the M25 itself we found that there
was a drop off around the 25-meter mark from the motorway itself, but it will be
monitored. The points on the embedded Carbon were noted. This area was generally
covered in the sustainability guidance documents. Also noted were his points on the
Lea Valley Regional Park.
Councillor Jon Whitehouse noted that there was an update due on walking, cycling
and public transport use. He presumed this would be inserted before it was
published. And he noted that it would be updated annually along with the KPI’s and
presumably it would come back to scrutiny for an annual update. How flexible was
this, could it be updated as it went along to take into account variables. Councillor
Bedford noted they were now selling more electric vehicles than petrol ones, and that
an update would be put into the action plan and reviewed regularly.
Councillor Chris Pond noted that he had been in contact with the relevant Portfolio
Holder on school streets, mentioned earlier, and they were hopeful progress could be
made.
Councillor Heap said that the plume from the motorways were subject to atmospheric
conditions and could sweep into the centre of the forest when the conditions were
right. He also noted that we may be able to support making micro generation
possible by encouraging those in power to support the use of micro generation
plants. Councillor Bedford noted this but said this was something to look to in the
future. We do have a need for energy generation but was not sure how we could do
it.
Decision:

Page 8

4

Cabinet

Monday, 11 April 2022

The Cabinet endorsed the adoption of the Climate Change Action Plan.
Reasons for Proposed Decision:
To ensure that policy was in place to support the declaration of a Climate Emergency
in September 2019 and the pledge to do everything within our power to become a
carbon neutral District by 2030.
Other Options for Action:
Not to agree the adoption of the Climate Change Action Plan, this would mean that a
delay in providing a plan to address the declared Climate Emergency.
130.

Direct Award of the Print Contract

This report was withdrawn for further advice from officers.
131.

Partnership Agreement for the delivery of Site Access Management and
Monitoring measures for the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation
The Planning and Sustainability Portfolio Holder, Councillor Bedford, introduced the
report.
Epping Forest contains land which was subject to international protection for its
biodiversity value by way of its designation as a Special Area of Conservation (SAC).
The Council has a legal duty as a ‘competent authority’ under the Habitats
Regulations to protect internationally important sites, such as the Epping Forest SAC,
from the effects of development. This can be best achieved using measures put in
place at the Local Plan level.
This report specifically concerns the potential impact of residential development on
the Epping Forest SAC in relation to additional visitors using the Forest for
recreational purposes.
The Partnership Agreement presented replaces the ‘Interim Approach to Managing
Recreational Pressure on the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation’ adopted
by the Council in October 2018. The Agreement has been jointly developed by the
Council with other competent authorities, Natural England, and the Corporation of
London as Delivery Body. The document outlines the updated Strategic Access
Management and Monitoring (SAMM) Strategy for the Epping Forest and the
Governance Arrangements to ensure that financial contributions that have been/will
be collected from development were spent in accordance with the purposes for which
they have been secured and that proper monitoring of spending was put in place.
Further, it outlines the robust approach to apportioning the SAMM Strategy costs to
individual local authorities, based upon the likely increase in visitor pressure from
each local authority as a result of development through respective Local Plans.
Finally, the report sets out the proposed approach for how Epping Forest District
Council would secure funding from development in its administrative area in order to
meet the SAMM Strategy costs apportioned to the local authority area.
The Partnership Agreement was considered by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee
on 31 March 2022. As the report outlines, the Conservators of Epping Forest and the
London Borough of Redbridge have approved the Partnership Agreement via their

Page 9

5

Cabinet

Monday, 11 April 2022

respective Committees and other neighbouring competent authorities are similarly
progressing reports through their Committee processes.
Councillor Philip noted that recommendation 3 referred to paragraph 25, it should be
paragraph 20 and changed accordingly. He then asked if the costs in paragraph 19
of the report were in addition to the “per dwelling” costs in paragraph 20. He also had
a concern on the £716 per dwelling for the Roding Valley Recreational Ground work
and noticed that Theydon Bois Parish Council was missing from the list. He noted
that the SANG of the south Epping Masterplan area was significantly closer to
Theydon Bois than Roding Valley Recreational Ground and as such it would be more
sensible to tie those together, otherwise it may be that development in Theydon
would be paying for work going on Roding Valley Recreation Ground. Can this be
looked at again. Nicky Linihan the consultant for this work replied that Theydon Bois
was included because the footpaths and other infrastructure enhancement projects
was looking at doing improvements to the footpath network linking Debden to the
Theydon Bois wood and then from Theydon Bois itself on to the woods. She agreed
that the way the costs were set out in the Strategy was not clear in terms of that
separation. She suggested that once the masterplan was done, then that might be an
appropriate time to review the costings and how they were attributed. Councillor
Philip was all in favour of improving the public rights of way, but the public rights of
way that was most in need of improving was a part of the Oak Trail that leads up
from the allocated site, but he welcomed the idea that this be revisited, and it should
form part of the recommendations. The Chairman agreed that was good amendment
to make to the recommendations.
Councillor Murray thanked Councillor Bedford on how he had listened to what
Overview and Scrutiny had said and responded appropriately. He agreed that TOG
was not the right group for Parishes to have representatives on as it was an officer
group. He added that we needed to identify how we spent this money and was
pleased to have the explanation on the £716 and was glad we were to have
consultation. At Scrutiny it was also felt that the document needed to be clearer on
dispute resolution but had not heard a response to that. Councillor C Whitbread
agreed that it was around dispute resolution and that the agreement should have
more comment on it. Nicky Linihan commented that one of the points was that we
should have a named contact in terms of a dispute. The way the agreement was
structured was that if there was a dispute it would first be raised at the Technical
Officers group and to try to resolve it informally. If this was not achievable then each
authority had a named position who this could be escalated to and resolve it and if
necessary, an expert would be called in to help resolve it; and to a certain extent
Natural England would act as an arbiter around the dispute.
Councillor Jon Whitehouse noted that there were a number of access points to the
forest other than High Beech and these areas also need to be looked at. Also, there
did not seem to be anything in there about active travel to the forest. Councillor
Bedford agreed that there were various area that would benefit from improvement
and we need to set up some sort of monitoring of visitor numbers to those areas so
money could be spent appropriately across the district.
Decision:
(1)
The Cabinet agreed that the Partnership Agreement for the delivery of the
Strategic Access Management and Monitoring measures for the Epping Forest
Special Area of Conservation set out in Appendix 1of the report, be adopted as a
material consideration in the determination of planning applications and prior
approval consents under permitted development rights proposals for residential

Page 10

6

Cabinet

Monday, 11 April 2022

development which would result in a net increase in new dwellings within the Epping
Forest District Council administrative area.
(2)
The Cabinet agreed that the Service Director for Planning (or any another
Service Director in their absence or officer duly authorised by the Service Director for
Planning) be given delegated authority to implement minor amendments to the
Partnership Agreement which may arise during the process of final sign-off of the
Agreement by the Council and partners to the Agreement, in consultation with the
Planning and Sustainability Portfolio Holder.
(3)
The Cabinet agreed that the tiered level of financial contribution to be sought
from net increases in new dwellings within 0-3km and 3-6.2km radius of the Epping
Forest Special Area of Conservation arising from the granting of planning
permissions and prior approval consents under permitted development rights shall be
as set out in paragraph 20 of the report.
(4)
The Cabinet agreed that the contributions as outlined in paragraph 19 of the
report in relation to the implementation of the Roding Valley Recreation Public Rights
of Way infrastructure enhancement projects be reviewed by the relevant Portfolio
Holder and the Leader, once the Masterplanning work for these projects had been
carried out.
Reasons for Proposed Decision:
To comply with the Council’s legal duty as a ‘competent authority’ under the Habitats
Regulations to protect internationally important sites, such as the Epping Forest SAC,
from the effects of development. As the report outlines, this could be best achieved
using strategic measures put in place at the Local Plan level. Natural England and
the Conservators of Epping Forest both voiced their support for the progress made in
finalising the approach to SAMM for Epping Forest in their representations on the
Main Modifications to the Local Plan Inspector, although expressed concern that this
needs to be swiftly finalised to enable the delivery of mitigation to commence.
Adoption of the Partnership Agreement is therefore important to support the final
stages of Examination of the Council’s emerging Local Plan and to enable financial
contributions to be paid to the accountable body for the SAMM delivery programme
to commence.
Other Options for Action:
For Cabinet to decide not to adopt the Partnership Agreement for the delivery of
SAMM measures for the Epping Forest SAC. This would mean that the Council
would fail to comply with its legal duty under the Habitats Regulations and may be
prevented from determining planning applications and applications for prior approval
under permitted development rights which result in a net increase in new dwellings.
For Cabinet to decide on an alternative approach to secure funding to meet the
SAMM Strategy costs apportioned to Epping Forest District.
132.

Quarter 3 Budget Monitoring Report 2021/22
The Finance, Qualis Client and Economic Development Portfolio Holder, Councillor
Philip, introduced the report. It was noted that this report set out the 2021/22 General
Fund and Housing Revenue Account positions, for both revenue and capital, as of
31st December 2021 (“Quarter 3”).
In terms of General Fund revenue expenditure – at the Quarter 3 stage – a budget

Page 11

7

Cabinet

Monday, 11 April 2022

over spend of £0.396 million, with projected net expenditure of £17.265 million
against an overall budget provision of £16.869 million was forecast.
As reported in previous quarters this year, the financial pressure due to the impact of
the Covid-19 pandemic had generally stabilised, with the Leisure Facilities budget
especially now back on track (albeit based on lower income expectations) as leisure
centre usage recovers more sharply than expected. Similarly, Car Park usage was
now back to around 80% of pre-pandemic levels, although the budget is off track.
Members should note however that, at the time of preparing this report, December
2021 data for both Leisure and Car Parking was still awaited, although there was
some positive anecdotal evidence that suggests that the impact of the Omicron
variant was not as great as initially feared.
However, there was a substantial overspend forecast (of £849,104) on the
Commercial & Technical directorate, due to significant variable cost pressures on
both the General Waste Collection and Recycling contracts, which were the most
significant areas of concern.
Decision:
1.
The Cabinet noted the General Fund revenue position at the end of Quarter 3
(31st December 2021) for 2021/22, including actions being or proposed to improve
the position, where significant variances have been identified;
2.
The Cabinet noted the General Fund capital position at the end of Quarter 3
(31st December 2021) for 2021/22;
3.
The Cabinet noted the Housing Revenue Account revenue position at the end
of Quarter 3 (31st December 2021) for 2021/22, including actions proposed to
ameliorate the position, where significant variances have been identified; and
4.
The Cabinet noted the Housing Revenue Account capital position at the end
of Quarter 3 (31st December 2021) for 2021/22.
Reason for Decision:
This report facilitates the scrutiny of the Council’s financial position for 2021/22.
In terms of General Fund revenue, overall it has been a stabilising picture following
the turbulence experienced in 2020/21 (and during Quarter 1 this year) due to the
Covid-19 pandemic. However, as reported in previous quarters this year, there are
still some remaining spending pressures, with the forecast overspend in the
Commercial & Technical directorate being particularly pronounced at the Quarter 3
stage. The funding position appears more positive, especially on Council Tax. The
net impact on the Council’s General Fund Reserve is especially important given the
relatively limited contingency balance currently held.
There are some significant spending pressures on the HRA revenue budget,
including ongoing issues with Housing Repairs, which has been challenging budget
area in recent years.
Capital spending has been relatively limited in both the General Fund and HRA in the
first half of the year.
The comments made at this Committee, where relevant, will be reported to Cabinet
for their consideration at their meeting on 7th February 2022.

Page 12

8

Cabinet

Monday, 11 April 2022

Other Options for Action:
There are no matters for decision in this report. The Committee is asked to note the
contents but may choose to take further action depending on the matters reported.
133.

Renewal of Council funding for the employment of a dedicated policing team
within Epping Forest District.
The Housing Services Portfolio Holder, Councillor H Whitbread introduced the report.
It was noted that an annual budget of £180,000 had been agreed for 3 years, to fund
the provision of the employment of three full-time Police Officers by Essex Police,
that comprises a sergeant and two police constables from June 2022 to June 2025,
to be jointly tasked and directed by the Council and Essex Police.
This would provide a dedicated Police resource for the district across the district’s
communities with full powers of arrest and enforcement and would support Council
officers in specific work as identified in the report.
Councillor Philips noted that the resources had been agreed by full Council and was
already in the budget.
Decision:
The Cabinet agreed to renew the existing Service Level Agreement (SLA) of the
Council funded dedicated policing team within Epping Forest District.
Reasons for decision:
The impact of not renewing the SLA would be that EFDC will lose the ‘added value’
provided by the team and would rely on the District Community Policing Team that
have competing demands placed upon them and will lose the ability to directly task
the dedicated team.
Options Considered and Rejected:
EFDC to terminate the contract at the end of the 4-year period in June 2022.

134.

Any Other Business
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the
Cabinet.

CHAIRMAN

Page 13

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14

Agenda Item 8
Report to the Cabinet
Report reference:

C-001-2022/23

Date of meeting:

6 June 2022

Portfolio:

Corporate Services

Subject:

Direct Award of the Print to Post Contract

Responsible Officer:
Democratic Services:

Dawn Baird (dbaird@eppingforestdc.gov.uk).
Christine Ferrigi (cferrigi@eppingforestdc.gov.uk).
Adrian Hendry
(01992 564246).

Recommendations/Decisions Required:
That PSL Print Management Limited is directly awarded the Print to Post contact
for a period of 3 years, with the option to extend for a further 2 years on an
annual basis through the Crown Commercial Services Framework.
Executive Summary:
The Council’s Procurement Rules require a Cabinet decision to award any contract with a total
value of over £1m when totalled over the life of the contract. Agreement is sought from
Cabinet to directly award PSL Print Management Limited a 3-year contract with the option to
extend for a further 2 years on an annual basis. PSL Print Management Limited has proved to
be flexible and keen to work in partnership with EFDC during their pilot period. Our
Procurement Team have confirmed they are still the best value option on the Crown
Commercial Services Framework. Furthermore, teams have made significant investments in
terms of time and resources in the Pilot, therefore it is undesirable to have to repeat this work
with a new provider.
Reasons for Proposed Decision:





PSL Print Management Limited still provide best value for money on the Crown
Commercial Services Framework;
PSL Print Management Limited has proved to be an excellent supplier during the
pilot period by being helpful, flexible and working in partnership with EFDC;
Some teams have already invested greatly in terms of time and resource in this
solution, so to change would create unnecessary work and pressure;
EFDC’s Procurement Team have researched and confirmed it is acceptable to
directly award this Contract via the Crown Commercial Services Framework.

Other Options for Action:
To commence a full tender process. This option has been discounted as PSL Print Management
Limited offer the best value for money under the Crown Commercial Framework when
considering price and quality of service. During the initial procurement process and again more
recently EFDC have researched Essex based print to post suppliers outside of the Crown
Commercial Framework and although we found plenty of printing suppliers, none offered a print
to post solution. Another reason for discounting a full tender process is due to the internal
resource implications that would have on services that are currently using the solution. Using

Page 15
DS/AH (November 2020)

Revenues and Benefits as an example, the initial set up and programming took hundreds of
resource hours whilst they worked through variations of templates to set up. This was a very
complex piece of work and that particular service alone would not have the resource capacity to
repeat that work with another supplier, due working on other projects such as moving their ICT
application to the cloud.
Another option considered is partnering with another local Council for a shared Reprographics
service. This option has been discounted as the Council are yet to hear back since reaching out
to Councils across Essex to initially find out who’s Reprographics service remains in house.
When the Council reached out a few years ago with the same query for outsourcing Council Tax
annual billing, Uttlesford District Council were one of the only Councils to respond and when we
offered to increase the volume of their current contract recently, they declined. EFDC were
approached by Harlow District Council a couple of months ago as they are working through their
own Accommodation Programme and are intending to implement a print to post solution
themselves.
Report:
1.
The Council is currently running an 18 month pilot with PSL Print Management Limited
to provide a Print to Post Solution. The pilot is due to end in September 2022. The Council has
been extremely satisfied with the service provided by PSL Print Management Limited as they
have proved to be helpful, flexible and keen to work in partnership with EFDC.
2.
Numerous teams are using the solution and the five most common pieces of
correspondence being issued via the solution are rent statements, benefit letters, council tax
bills & non-domestic rates bills (outside of annual billing) and council meeting agendas. The
Council are reviewing opportunities to channel shift this correspondence where possible.
3.
Spend for 21/22 was £126,319.54. As more services move to the PSL solution annual
spend may increase for a period of time, however, budget holders have been tasked with
reviewing their print spend on a regular basis to consider what their services are printing and
why, to look to reduce that spend by digitalising where possible. As an example, Revenues
and Benefits will research into the debt recovery module of their ICT application. We are also
looking at ways to reduce costs with PSL, such as reviewing what we print in colour and
making a switch to monochrome and reviewing the quality of the paper used to see if that can
we be reduced too. We are also moving items that currently fall under the budget of ‘other
external printing’ across to the solution when they are better value for money. There is also a
project in flight to review and reduce the amount of MFDs we have across our footprint, which
will reduce the annual spend with our MFD supplier.
Although we have not committed to an annual spend with PSL Print Management Limited, we
are bringing this report to Cabinet to ensure that procurement rules are followed as although it
is unlikely, there is a possibility that we may spend £200,000 per annum, which means we
could reach a spend of £1,000,000 over 5 years.
4.
Three online training courses on the PSL Print Management Limited solution were held
for all colleagues in November 2021. Work is continuing to move whole teams onto the
solution. Our Legal Team are gradually moving across to the solution and our Parking Team
have recently met with the supplier to discuss their requirements.
5.
Significant work has been undertaken by some teams such as Revenues and Benefits to
configure documents and templates to enable them to use the print to post solution. It is
suggested that it would not be desirable to change solution now as much of this work would
need to be repeated.
Resource Implications:
Financial savings and other benefits have been captured below, including some background

Page 16
DS/AH (November 2020)

information for context.
Up until Spring 2019 EFDC had an inhouse Reprographics service, which was made of up 3
FTE and some additional casual staff for busier periods, such as Council Tax annual billing.
There was a combination of owned and leased equipment and the service ran out of the
basement in the Conder building. In 2017/18 there was a Reprographics service review to
explore whether the function was offering a value for money, high quality service and various
options were explored for the future.
Following the service review, an options appraisal was presented to the SLT to make a decision
on how the service should proceed. The options presented were to continue as is, introduce a
hybrid approach of having a smaller Reprographics service in house and outsourcing some of
our printing and then the final option of outsourcing the service entirely. The decision was taken
to decommission the Reprographics function and outsource all of our printing requirements over
a period of time. The influencing factors to this decision were the Capital budget required to
upgrade our existing equipment, the lack of resilience within a small team and little to no options
of an appropriate location in the new Civic Offices.
Once the service was decommissioned the Business Support Team worked additional hours to
provide an interim service for Council Tax, Housing Benefits and Democratic Services. This
continued until July 2021 where this service was operating out of the café area in the new Civic
Offices. This was not sustainable as this was not an appropriate location for the equipment to be
stored due to potential partnership or commercial opportunities within that space. The interim
service lacked resilience and was running off good will of Officers. During this period Council
Tax annual billing was outsourced to Uttlesford District Council, and other services within the
Council used various external suppliers.
During the Accommodation Programme we identified that the Officer to desk ratio was going to
significantly reduce and during informal consultation numerous teams highlighted their need for
full time desks within the new Civic Offices. One of the most common reasons for this was due
to Officers needing to print and send correspondence to residents. We discussed solutions to
enable us to support the Officer to desk ratio and we identified that a print to post solution with
an external supplier would be appropriate. Although the solution was implemented a year into
the pandemic, it also enabled Officers to work remotely during and between lockdowns.
Budget information (actual spend)
2018/19 (the last full financial year that Reprographics remained as an in-house service)

Reprographics
Council meeting agendas
Other external printing
Postage
Xerox MFD contract
Total

£241,089
£54,860
£35,000
£160,740
£33,465.34
£525,154.34

2019/20 (one off costs)

Severance payments and pension strain costs
for Reprographics employees
iPads for Councillors & Youth Council
Total

£151,430.09
£62,588
£214,018.09

Page 17
DS/AH (November 2020)

2021/22

PSL Print Management Limited
Council meeting agendas via PSL Print
Management Limited
Other external printing
Postage
Xerox MFD contract
Total

£94,352.54
£31,967
£67,202.15
£121,378.81
£20,221.69
£335,122.19

*N.B. The one off EFDC resource costs of implementing the print to post solution has not been
captured above as accurate data is not available.
Although it is not a large amount of money, it is worth mentioning that the Council sold most of
the equipment that we owned within the Reprographics service and we gained an income of
£3,125.31 plus VAT. The Council also donated other Reprographics supplies to a local school.
Not only have costs decreased when comparing to the Reprographics service, Officers are
receiving a new, additional service for that cost within the print to post solution. The other
benefits aside from cost savings are increased resilience and a reduction in office footprint
requirements, which frees up more space for commercial or partnership opportunities.
Legal and Governance Implications:
N/A.
Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:
By using the solution, the Council has full insight into how much print to post printing is
occurring and via which teams. These will allow teams to focus on reducing printing and
identifying alternative greener methods. Colleagues are no longer undertaking car journeys to
come into the office just to print and post correspondence.
Consultation Undertaken: N/A
Background Papers: N/A
Risk Management: N/A

Page 18
DS/AH (November 2020)

Equality Impact Assessment
1. Under s.149 of the Equality Act 2010, when making decisions, Epping District Council
must have regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty, ie have due regard to:




eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and other
conduct prohibited by the Act,
advancing equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not,
fostering good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not, including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.

2. The characteristics protected by the Equality Act are:










age
disability
gender
gender reassignment
marriage/civil partnership
pregnancy/maternity
race
religion/belief
sexual orientation.

3. In addition to the above protected characteristics you should consider the cross-cutting
elements of the proposed policy, namely the social, economic and environmental impact
(including rurality) as part of this assessment. These cross-cutting elements are not a
characteristic protected by law but are regarded as good practice to include.
4. The Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) document should be used as a tool to test and
analyse the nature and impact of either what we do or are planning to do in the future. It
can be used flexibly for reviewing existing arrangements but in particular should enable
identification where further consultation, engagement and data is required.
5. Use the questions in this document to record your findings. This should include the
nature and extent of the impact on those likely to be affected by the proposed policy or
change.
6. Where this EqIA relates to a continuing project, it must be reviewed and updated at each
stage of the decision.
7. All Cabinet, Council, and Portfolio Holder reports must be accompanied by an
EqIA. An EqIA should also be completed/reviewed at key stages of projects.
8. To assist you in completing this report, please ensure you read the guidance notes in the
Equality Analysis Toolkit and refer to the following Factsheets:
o
o
o
o
o
o

Factsheet 1: Equality Profile of the Epping Forest District
Factsheet 2: Sources of information about equality protected characteristics
Factsheet 3: Glossary of equality related terms
Factsheet 4: Common misunderstandings about the Equality Duty
Factsheet 5: Frequently asked questions
Factsheet 6: Reporting equality analysis to a committee or other decision making body

Page 19
DS/AH (November 2020)

Section 1: Identifying details
Your function, service area and team: Business Support
If you are submitting this EqIA on behalf of another function, service area or team, specify the
originating function, service area or team: No
Title of policy or decision: Direct Award of the 3-year plus 1 year plus 1-year Contract for the Print
to Post Solution to PSL Print Management Limited
Officer completing the EqIA: Tel: EXT 2557 Email: : dbaird@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
Date of completing the assessment: 21st December 2021

Section 2: Policy to be analysed
2.1

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an existing policy, practice or project?
Change

2.2

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of the policy (or decision):
To provide an efficient and effective Print to Post Solution.
What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie decommissioning or commissioning a
service)?
Agreement to directly award a 5-year contract to PSL Print Management Limited.

2.3

Does or will the policy or decision affect:
 service users
 employees
 the wider community or groups of people, particularly where there are areas of
known inequalities?

Will the policy or decision influence how organisations operate? The decision will affect
employees who send post out externally.
2.4

Will the policy or decision involve substantial changes in resources? There are
implements for the Business Support Team.
Some of the changes have already been adopted as part of the pilot for example the
removal of the large printer and enveloping machine. As the Print to Post solution
becomes more widespread the amount of post requiring sending at the end of the day
will reduce. Further the number of internal printers will reduce.

2.5

Is this policy or decision associated with any of the Council’s other policies and how, if
applicable, does the proposed policy support corporate outcomes? The solution should
assist with the corporate outcomes of agile working and becoming greener.

Page 20
DS/AH (November 2020)

Section 3: Evidence/data about the user population and consultation1
As a minimum you must consider what is known about the population likely to be affected which will
support your understanding of the impact of the policy, eg service uptake/usage, customer
satisfaction surveys, staffing data, performance data, research information (national, regional and
local data sources).
3.1

What does the information tell you about those groups identified? All colleagues will be
affected by this change as they will no longer be required to attend the office to print
documents.

3.2

Have you consulted or involved those groups that are likely to be affected by the policy
or decision you want to implement? If so, what were their views and how have their
views influenced your decision? As teams move across to the Print to Post Solution, they
are fully supported by Business Support and PSL Print Management Limited.

3.3

If you have not consulted or engaged with communities that are likely to be affected by
the policy or decision, give details about when you intend to carry out consultation or
provide reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:

Page 21
DS/AH (November 2020)

Section 4: Impact of policy or decision
Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you now know.
There is not specific individual impacted by this decision it is rather a new process for printing for all
colleagues.
Description of impact

Nature of impact
Positive, neutral, adverse
(explain why)

Extent of impact
Low, medium,
high
(use L, M or H)

Age

Positive – not required to travel to print
documents. More efficient working
processes

High

Disability

Positive – not required to travel to print
documents. More efficient working
processes

High

Gender

Positive – not required to travel to print
documents. More efficient working
process.

High

Gender reassignment

Positive – not required to travel to print
documents. More efficient working
process.

High

Marriage/civil partnership

Positive – not required to travel to print
documents. More efficient working
processes.

High

Pregnancy/maternity

Positive – not required to travel to print
documents. More efficient working
process.

High

Race

Positive – not required to travel to print
documents. More efficient working
process.

High

Religion/belief

Positive – not required to travel to print
documents. More efficient working process.

High

Sexual orientation

Positive – not required to travel to print
documents. More efficient working
process.

High

Page 22
DS/AH (November 2020)

Section 5: Conclusion
Tick Yes/No
as
appropriate
5.1

Does the EqIA in Section
4 indicate that the policy
or decision would have a
medium or high adverse
impact on one or more
equality groups?

No x

Yes

Page 23
DS/AH (November 2020)

If ‘YES’, use the action
plan at Section 6 to describe
the adverse impacts
and what mitigating actions
you could put in place.

Section 6: Action plan to address and monitor adverse impacts
What are the potential adverse
impacts?

What are the mitigating actions?

Date they will be
achieved.

Colleagues are daunted by the
new solution.

Training and ongoing support is being
provided.

December 2021

Page 24
DS/AH (November 2020)

Section 7: Sign off
I confirm that this initial analysis has been completed appropriately.
(A typed signature is sufficient.)
Signature of Head of Service: Christine Ferrigi

Date: 21/12/2021

Signature of person completing the EqIA: Dawn Baird

Date: 21/12/2021

Advice
Keep your director informed of all equality & diversity issues. We recommend that you forward
a copy of every EqIA you undertake to the director responsible for the service area. Retain a
copy of this EqIA for your records. If this EqIA relates to a continuing project, ensure this
document is kept under review and updated, eg after a consultation has been undertaken.

DS/AH (November 2020)

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Report to Cabinet
Report reference: C-002-2022/23

Date of meeting: 6 June 2022

Portfolio: Housing & Community (Cllr Holly Whitbread)
Subject: Repurchase of Leasehold Properties on Limes Estate
Officer contact for further information: Deborah Fenton (07988860412)
Democratic Services Officer: A Hendry, 01992 654246

Recommendations/Decisions Required
That the Cabinet agree to the proposed repurchase of up to 5 flats on the Limes
and Copperfield estate (Non- trad construction) taking priority, using Capital
from the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Right to Buy Receipts (RTB).
Executive Summary:
Following a review of our capital programme, A decision was made to take an approach to
improvements which would drive efficiency and drive up impact for customers. It is well
understood that properties have a finite life cycle. To maximise the life span of our blocks, we
must carry out regular improvement works. The process of improving properties is worked out
using life cycles, there is an industry average for all components for buildings.
Our residential assets are reaching the point where major investment is required. Choosing
not to invest could lead to a situation where the asset could become dangerous and losses in
income through voids increased. Furthermore, it will lead to a disintegration of the quality of
life for our residents.
Officers are keen to support Leaseholders regarding the affordability of their contribution to
capital works. Therefore, this paper seeks to get approval for the second of our support
schemes, which is to buy back up to 5 non-traditional construction flats.
Report:
1.
The regeneration of the Limes and Copperfield estates is the first of several plans to
create great places where people want to live.
2.
Within the estate, we have a mix of tenures including both social housing tenants and
leaseholders. As such the cost of major works is included in the rent of those tenants who live
in social or affordable rented stock. For leaseholders, the cost is divided therefore ensuring a
fair and equitable contribution.

Page 27

3.
When a flat or maisonette is sold under the Right to Buy scheme it becomes a
leasehold property and at the time of completion, the applicant would have their own legal
representative who acts for them.
4.
As part of the Right to Buy Sale, the Council would provide a five-year forecast of
charges for any Major Works and associated costs. This allows the applicant to give full
consideration to the purchase and the responsibility they are taking on in becoming a
leaseholder.
5.
If in the first five years of ownership major works are carried out and the cost is higher
than first anticipated, the costs will be capped in line with the estimate provided at the point of
sale.
6.
If a leasehold property is sold on the open market, then the leaseholder would be
provided with a Pre-sales information pack by the Home Ownership Team. This will give them
information on any planned works known at the time of sale/purchase.
7.

However, as we cannot always foresee the future, we also advise of the following:

It should be noted that necessary works and improvements may be identified at any
time during the management of the property. The Council reserves the right to
undertake such works, subject to the statutory consultation requirements as and when
the need arises. Future leaseholders should be made aware that other items, which
incur expenditure, may arise at any time in the future and those identified in this
response are not conclusive.
8.
As a socially aware business, we are minded of the challenges which leaseholders
encounter in having to fund their proportion of the works. As such we have 2 initiatives which
offer support to leaseholders. The payment options report has already been presented to this
Cabinet and agreed upon, this allows leaseholders to pay the costs over a period of years.
Buyback Scheme
9.
During our consultation with leaseholders, several residents were concerned about
how they were going to meet the cost of the work. Therefore, they had enquired about
remortgaging. In all cases, the mortgage companies refused because the build type is nontraditional construction. Although there is nothing wrong with this type of building method,
lenders in most cases have decided that this product is not something they wish to lend on.
10.
To support leaseholders’ officers are proposing that a capital sum of up to £1m be
allocated, from the HRA to purchase up to 5 flats from affected leaseholders who are in a
leasehold flat/maisonette on the Limes estates which is non-traditional construction,
Funding and ROI
11.
The capital sum will be a mix of the right to buy receipts and capital from the HRA.
Historically, when buying back properties or purchasing street properties it is prudent to carry
out a financial appraisal to make sure that the Council is not subject to the financial detriment
when making such purchases. As such, officers will run each proposed purchase through our
ProVal tool which will provide us with the return throughout the business plan.
Future Right to Buy
12.
Any buybacks are subject to a cost floor, this means that the council is afforded a level
of protection when buying the properties as any subsequent resale via the RTB, cannot be
below the construction or acquisition cost of the dwelling.

Page 28

Reason for decision:
There is a need to offer support to leaseholders to assist those that find themselves in
financial difficulty when subject to capital costs.
Options considered and rejected:
The option was considered not to offer support, however, this was rejected.
Consultation undertaken:
The Finance Team have been consulted.

Resource implications:
Capital funding is required for this project which will be taken from the HRA and part-funded
from the RTB receipts.
Legal and Governance Implications:
This proposal meets all requirements
Safer, Cleaner, Greener Implications:

Background Papers:
A similar project was undertaken in 2006 (C/073/2006-07)
Impact Assessments:
Attached
Risk Management:
The risks of this project are financial, and mitigation is in place via feasibility assessments.

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Equality Impact Assessment
1. Under s.149 of the Equality Act 2010, when making decisions, Epping District Council must have
regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty, ie have due regard to:




eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and other conduct
prohibited by the Act,
advancing equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not,
fostering good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those
who do not, including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.

2. The characteristics protected by the Equality Act are:










age
disability
gender
gender reassignment
marriage/civil partnership
pregnancy/maternity
race
religion/belief
sexual orientation.

3. In addition to the above protected characteristics you should consider the cross-cutting elements
of the proposed policy, namely the social, economic and environmental impact (including rurality)
as part of this assessment. These cross-cutting elements are not a characteristic protected by
law but are regarded as good practice to include.
4. The Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) document should be used as a tool to test and analyse
the nature and impact of either what we do or are planning to do in the future. It can be used
flexibly for reviewing existing arrangements but in particular should enable identification where
further consultation, engagement and data is required.
5. Use the questions in this document to record your findings. This should include the nature and
extent of the impact on those likely to be affected by the proposed policy or change.
6. Where this EqIA relates to a continuing project, it must be reviewed and updated at each stage of
the decision.
7. All Cabinet, Council, and Portfolio Holder reports must be accompanied by an EqIA. An
EqIA should also be completed/reviewed at key stages of projects.
8. To assist you in completing this report, please ensure you read the guidance notes in the Equality
Analysis Toolkit and refer to the following Factsheets:
o
o
o
o
o
o

Factsheet 1: Equality Profile of the Epping Forest District
Factsheet 2: Sources of information about equality protected characteristics
Factsheet 3: Glossary of equality related terms
Factsheet 4: Common misunderstandings about the Equality Duty
Factsheet 5: Frequently asked questions
Factsheet 6: Reporting equality analysis to a committee or other decision making body

Page 31
GOV/DS/ST (March 2018)

Section 1: Identifying details
Your function, service area and team: Housing and Property
If you are submitting this EqIA on behalf of another function, service area or team, specify the
originating function, service area or team: NA
Title of policy or decision: repurchase of leaseholder properties
Officer completing the EqIA: Deborah Fenton Tel: 079888 60412
dfenton@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Email:

Date of completing the assessment: 25/5/22

Section 2: Policy to be analysed
2.1

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an existing policy, practice or
project? Yes

2.2

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of the policy (or decision):
To repurchase up to 5 flats on the limes and copperfield estate during the
regeneration project
What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie decommissioning or commissioning
a service)?
Agreement of the options

2.3

Does or will the policy or decision affect:
 service users
 employees
 the wider community or groups of people, particularly where there are areas
of known inequalities?
No
Will the policy or decision influence how organisations operate?
No

2.4

Will the policy or decision involve substantial changes in resources?
No

2.5

Is this policy or decision associated with any of the Council’s other policies and
how, if applicable, does the proposed policy support corporate outcomes?

Page 32
GOV/DS/ST (March 2018)

Section 3: Evidence/data about the user population and
consultation1
As a minimum you must consider what is known about the population likely to be affected
which will support your understanding of the impact of the policy, eg service uptake/usage,
customer satisfaction surveys, staffing data, performance data, research information (national,
regional and local data sources).
3.1

What does the information tell you about those groups identified?
NA

3.2

Have you consulted or involved those groups that are likely to be affected by the
policy or decision you want to implement? If so, what were their views and how have
their views influenced your decision?.

3.3

If you have not consulted or engaged with communities that are likely to be affected
by the policy or decision, give details about when you intend to carry out consultation
or provide reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:
N/A

Page 33
GOV/DS/ST (March 2018)

Section 4: Impact of policy or decision
Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you now
know.
Description of impact

Nature of impact
Positive, neutral, adverse
(explain why)

Extent of impact
Low, medium, high
(use L, M or H)

Age

Neutral – the paper is for information
only and will not impact on any
groups

L

Disability

As above

L

Gender

As above

L

Gender reassignment

As above

L

Marriage/civil partnership

As above

L

Pregnancy/maternity

As above

L

Race

As above

L

Religion/belief

As above

L

Sexual orientation

As above

L

Page 34
GOV/DS/ST (March 2018)

Section 5: Conclusion
Tick
Yes/No as
appropriate
5.1

Does the EqIA in
Section 4 indicate that
the policy or decision
would have a medium
or high adverse impact
on one or more
equality groups?

No X

no

Page 35
GOV/DS/ST (March 2018)

If ‘YES’, use the action
plan at Section 6 to describe
the adverse impacts
and what mitigating actions
you could put in place.

Section 6: Action plan to address and monitor adverse impacts
What are the potential
adverse impacts?

What are the mitigating actions?

Date they will be
achieved.

None

N/A

N/ADe

Page 36
GOV/DS/ST (March 2018)

Section 7: Sign off
I confirm that this initial analysis has been completed appropriately.
(A typed signature is sufficient.)
Signature of Head of Service: Deborah Fenton

Date:25/5/22

Signature of person completing the EqIA: Deborah Fenton

Date: 25/5/22

Advice
Keep your director informed of all equality & diversity issues. We recommend that you forward
a copy of every EqIA you undertake to the director responsible for the service area. Retain a
copy of this EqIA for your records. If this EqIA relates to a continuing project, ensure this
document is kept under review and updated, eg after a consultation has been undertaken.

Page 37
GOV/DS/ST (March 2018)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
Report to the Cabinet
Report reference:

C-003-2022/23

Date of meeting:

6th June 2022

Portfolio:

Finance – Cllr J. Philip

Subject:

Quarterly Monitoring Report – Q2 2021/22

Responsible Officer:

Andrew Small

(07548 145665).

Democratic Services:

Adrian Hendry

(01992 564246).

Recommendations/Decisions Required:
To discuss this report and agree any actions required before its consideration by
Council.

1.

Executive Summary

1.1.

The Governance framework for Qualis, as agreed by Cabinet in February 2020,
included the requirement that Qualis should report to Epping Forest District Council
on its performance Quarterly.

1.2.

This report presents the second Quarter’s monitoring report for the Qualis trading
year 2021/22 and covers the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 March 2022. Attached
as Appendix A is the Qualis Board monitoring report for Quarter 2.

1.3.

Because of the fall of meeting dates this report will be considered by Cabinet before
Stronger Council Select Committee. If Stronger Council has any comments these will
be relayed directly to the Portfolio Holder.

1.4.

Performance is measured in the attached reports against the business plan targets
for 2021/22. The Board report highlights performance against these using the
recognised Red, Amber, Green reporting system (RAG).

1.5.

Whilst Quarter 2 of Year 3 shows a continuing loss, as previously reported this is
primarily associated with delays in achieving planning consent for Roundhills. Once
planning consent is obtained this cost will be removed from the Profit and Loss
account. Issues with finding suitable regeneration sites within the District are also
contributing to the position. The Business Plan had assumed that rental income
associated with new acquisitions would have been delivered prior to the end of
Quarter 2. With these exceptions the position is broadly in line with the target.

2.

Introduction

2.1.

The Qualis Shareholder agreement, as agreed by Cabinet on February 2020,
includes the following paragraph,

1

Page 39

‘The Company shall procure that quarterly management accounts and reports
(including a balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement)
containing such information as EFDC may reasonably require are provided to EFDC
and EFDC’s Representative.’
2.2.

The Cabinet resolution also requires that the Council’s S151, as the key conduit
between Qualis and the Council, provides a commentary to the Council on the
performance of Qualis at each Quarter review.

2.3.

In compliance with this requirement Qualis has provided the Council with the
Quarters’ Management Accounts for consideration.

3.

Commentary on the Trading Performance for Quarter 2, 2021/22 (Qualis Year 3)

3.1.

The Qualis Board report attached at Appendix A meets the requirements placed upon
Qualis within the Shareholder agreement. The Board report presents the Balance
Sheets, P&Ls and a Cash Flow explanation. It also RAG (Red, Amber, Green) rates
key quarterly deliverables against the Business Plan.

3.2.

Cabinet should note that majority of the deliverables for Year 3 Quarter 2 are flagged
as Green with the exceptions highlighted below.

3.3.

Cash in Bank (Continuing as Amber) – Below the target of £6 million by £722,534
(£2,733,218 below target in Quarter 1). The lower cash position is attributed to
delays in drawing down cash from the Council approved loan facility. The Business
Plan had anticipated that £6 million of funding under the construction loan and £10
million of funding under the Development Loan would have been drawn down in
Quarter 2 whilst delays meant these had not happened before the 31 March.

3.4.

Income and Expenditure (Reduced to Amber) – The Board report includes
cumulative losses up to the end of the 2nd quarter of £458,391 compared to a
business plan expectation of a profit of £185,832. This is slight deterioration on
quarter 1 where the in-year losses stood at £383,941. However, the reason given is
consistent with previous reports and is accepted. The reason for the accumulated
loss is largely twofold. Partly it is associated with accrued expenditure on the
Roundhills development site, which Qualis is unable to charge to its Balance Sheet
as ‘Work in Progress’ until planning consent is given. Once Planning consent is
awarded, this cost will be removed from the Profit and Loss account. The second
issue is delays in sourcing suitable regeneration sites within the district.

3.5.

Qualis Commercial (Flagged as Amber) – Whilst costs associated with the Epping
Sites have now been moved to the Balance Sheet, the ongoing accrued costs
associated with the Roundhills development must stay in the Profit and Loss account
until Planning consent is achieved.

3.6.

Qualis Living (Flagged as Amber) – Qualis has experienced delays in finding and
investing in suitable local properties using the regeneration loan of £35 million that
the Council has made available to it. As this process is taking longer than had been
assumed in the Business Plan, it is impacting upon the forecast higher rental income.

3.7.

The table below sets out the actual net income or expenditure against that expected
for each of the Qualis companies.

2

Page 40

Qualis
Company

Expected
£

Actual
£

Variance
£

-32,219
0
-30,248
248,299
185,832

23,825
-428,906
48,319
-101,629
-458,391

56,044
-428,906
78,567
-349,929
-644,223

Group
Commercial
Management
Living
Total
3.8.

Last Report
Q1 (2021/22)
£
14,472
-1,906,105
137,269
-711,889
-2,466,253

The Balance Sheet position, showing Fixed Assets and accumulated net worth of
Qualis, is set out in the table below. Fixed Assets are individually identified for
members’ information as the Council charges these for security purposes against the
loans provided. The Net Worth position reflects the accumulation and carry forward
of set-up costs to be offset by future planned profits.
Qualis Company

Group
Commercial
Management
Living
Total

Fixed Assets
£

Net Worth (Q2)
£

58,009
0
62,252
30,391,903
30,512,164

133,907
-2,962,171
-441,474
-1,061,246
-4,330,984

Last Report
Q4 (2020/21)
£
72,719
-2,848,737
-170,642
-470,912
-3,417,572

3.9.

The reported deficit position now incorporates the capitalisation of Work in Progress
on the Qualis development sites, thereby explaining the increase in the deficit carried
forward. Qualis anticipates achieving a positive net worth position during their
trading year 2024/25 – this coincides with the completion of their initial developments.

4.

Resource Implications

4.1.

The Epping Forest District Council Budget and Medium-Term Financial Plans partly
rely on interest paid by Qualis for the loans the Council has given. Delays in
obtaining Planning consent, issues around title and delays in completing the loan
agreements meant that actual payments to the Council were lower than expected in
2021/22 and this was reported in the Epping Forest District Council Budgetary
monitoring reports. The Budget for 2022/23 takes account of these factors.

4.2.

Actual lending to Qualis at the year-end is follows;
Loan Purpose

Working Capital Loan
Asset Purchase
Construction Loan
EFDC Asset Purchase
Regeneration Loan
Net Receipts

Facility
£
Millions
6.0
30.0
68.0
16.8
35.0
155.8

Term
Years
5
10
30
30
TBC

3

Page 41

Interest
Rate
%
4.10
4.00
6.00
4.94
TBC

Advanced
at Quarter 1
£ Millions
6.0
30.0
6.0
14.0
0
58.0

Advanced at
Quarter 2
£ Millions
6.0
30.0
11.0
14.0
0
63.0

4.3.

At the end of Q2 the Council had loaned Qualis £63 million against a Council
commitment of £155.8 million.

4.4.

The drawdown of loans is generally taking longer than originally anticipated in both
the Qualis Business Plan and in the Council’s Budget and this impacts on the
delivery of financial planning target. Further delays will reduce the lending margin
earned by the Council in 2022/23, but it is expected that some of this will be
recouped through earlier advances of the construction loan than the budget
assumed.

5.

Legal and Governance Implications

5.1.

None contained within this report.

6.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications

6.1.

None.

7.

Consultation Undertaken

7.1.

None

Background Papers
Group Company Governance Document – Cabinet 6 February 2020

4

Page 42

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial

Finance and Performance Monitoring
Quarterly Report
Year 3, Quarter 2, (1st January 2022 – 31st March 2022)

Subject:

Finance and Performance Monitoring

Author:

Nick Dawe, Group Finance Director

Decisions Required: To approve the report and note the actions.
1. To note the figures and performance
highlighted in this report.
2. To support the key actions set out through
Section 5 of this report.
3. To agree that this report should be passed to
Epping Forest District Council in line with the
Shareholder Agreement.

Page 43

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial

1. Purpose of this report
1.1 The Qualis Group Board receives monthly financial reports direct by email
1.2 In line with the Shareholder Agreement, the Group Board receives a quarterly Finance
and Performance Report that tracks the success of the Group against the (EFDC)
agreed Annual Business Plan and Annual Budget at alternating six-weekly meetings.
1.3 This formal monitoring will include any Board and subsequently Shareholder approved
amendments to the Business Plan and Annual Budget.
1.4 The quarterly Finance and Performance Report will be passed to EFDC to allow scrutiny
and to be noted.
1.5 The format of the report has been altered to match the monthly reports distributed to the
Board and operational performance and key performance indicators are the subject of a
separate report.
1.6 Comments shown in red are internal comments to the Qualis Board and will be excluded
from the version of the report sent to EFDC.

2. Monitoring finance and operational performance indicators
2.1 The key performance indicators set out below are those proposed to be used for
monitoring purposes in the future. They are top level indicators of the financial health and
operation delivery of the Qualis group of companies.
2.2 Major exceptions are reported as are actions to remedy any exception. In line with
standard practice, the following colour coded performance flags ae used:
Colour Overall Performance

Detailed Measure

Cyan, exceptional performance

Green, good performance

Page 44

For finance; over twice the
expected figure, for operations,
over one month ahead of target
delivery.
For finance; positive performance
up to twice the expected figure, for
operations, up to one month ahead
of target delivery.

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial

Amber, poor performance but will be
remedied next quarter

For finance; negative performance
variance of between 5% and 10%
of the expected figure, for
operations, one and three months
behind target delivery.
For finance; negative performance
variance of between 5% and 10%
of the expected figure, for
operations, one and three months
behind target delivery.
For finance; negative performance
variance in excess of 10% of the
expected figure, for operations,
over three months behind target
delivery.

Red, poor performance but will be
remedied in two further quarters

Black, poor performance requiring
immediate Board level intervention

2.4 Direction of travel indicators are shown as arrows, either up for improved performance or
down for deteriorating performance. An equal sign indicates no change in the reported trend.

3. Key financial performance indicators
Indicator

Target
£

Actual
£

Variance
£

5,277,466
3,266,782 - -722,534
2,733,218

Cash in Bank

6,000,000
6,000,000

Income and
Expenditure

-644,224
185,832
-458,391
51,218 383,941 435,158

Balance Sheet

Performance

Reported from Reported from Reported from
Q2
Q2
Q2 Not applicble

3.1 The top-level indicators are shown above including performance and trend flags.

3.2 The cash position is below the target of £6 million by £722,534, which is based on the
initial working capital position. This variation is principally due to delays drawing £6m
from the construction loan facility, and £10m from the regeneration loan facility, noting

Page 45

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial

that the £6m would be used to fund development costs in Quarter 3, whilst the £10m
would have been used to purchase income earning assets in Quarter 2
3.3 The income and expenditure position is £644,224 off target, mainly due to two factors:
the delays in finding and investing in additional local income earning assets and the
temporary treating of Roundhills development costs as expenditure until planning
permission is sought and hopefully gained in June.

4. Budget and business plan amendments this quarter
4.1 There have been no agreed amendments to the 2021/22 Budget in respect of an
increase in the quantum of income and cost or to reflect a redistribution between
spending budgets.
4.2 The Budget will be subject to a mid-year review at the end of March 2022 with any
alterations noted and appearing in the next report.

5 Company financial performance, income, and expenditure.
5.1 The income and expenditure summary for the individual companies that form the Qualis
Group of companies is summarised on the following pages.

Page 46

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial
5.2 Qualis Group

Page 47

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial
Qualis Group
Month
Oct-21
Nov-21
Dec-21
Jan-22
Feb-22
Mar-22
Apr-22
May-22
Jun-22
Jul-22
Aug-22
Sep-22

Sales
196,406
187,716
192,040
192,040
192,040
193,815

-

Costs
209,304 148,318
172,372
219,687 187,064
193,487

TOTAL
TARGET
VARIANCE

-

Net Profit
12,898
39,398
19,668
27,647
4,976
328

23,825
32,219
56,044

Items to note:


Not all posts have been filled so expenditure is below budget. Recharges are based
on current budget which in respect of the Qualis share of the consultancy and legal
costs for the EFDC asset investment review, for the has not been used.

Actions


None

Page 48

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial

5.3 Qualis Commercial

Page 49

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial

Qualis Commercial
Month
Oct-21
Nov-21
Dec-21
Jan-22
Feb-22
Mar-22
Apr-22
May-22
Jun-22
Jul-22
Aug-22
Sep-22

Sales
160
965,922
61
254,546
13,546
222,235

-

Costs
160
61
457,432 1,288,507 379,967 240,750

TOTAL
TARGET
VARIANCE

-

Net Profit
0
965,861
457,371
1,033,961
366,421
462,985

428,906
428,906

Items to note:




In the balance sheet £3.8m has been transferred to work in progress reducing the
loss previously shown on the profit and loss account by a similar amount. This
represents the spending incurred by Qualis since October 2019 to date on the
Epping Sites. This should be cared to the £1.8m loss that booked as a loss in
2020/21 before planning permission was gained.
Roundhills expenditure had been taken to WIP as planning permission was
originally expected before the end of December. The expenditure has been
moved back to income and expenditure until planning permission is gained
indicatively by the 31st March 2022.

Actions


The quantum and phasing of all business cases is due to be reviewed in January.
No major change is expected other than the setting of the short-term interest rate
at 6% and the long-term interest rate at 3%, in accordance with the amended
loan facility agreement.

Page 50

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial

5.4 Qualis Management

Page 51

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial

Qualis Management
Month
Oct-21
Nov-21
Dec-21
Jan-22
Feb-22
Mar-22
Apr-22
May-22
Jun-22
Jul-22
Aug-22
Sep-22

Sales
588,438
576,311
536,003
558,722
558,112
593,715

-

Costs
595,370 609,829 505,302
510,049
542,056
600,377 -

TOTAL
TARGET
VARIANCE

-

Net Profit
6,931
33,518
30,701
48,673
16,056
6,662

48,319
30,248
78,567

Items to note:








The reduction agreed in SLA income with EFDC.
2.5% income inflation funding impact has yet to be agreed with EFDC until the
Shareholder has set its own budget.
Out of hours policy has been reviewed and expenditure has decreased.
Voids specification and associated costs have reduced and have been more
profitable in this period.
Salaries, a slight increase as new starters have been employed ready for new
work-streams.
Additional materials costs have been noted.
Agreed changes to the SLA has reduced income, which has been factored into
2021/22 budget.

Actions



Inflation costs and charges to be agreed with EFDC before 31st March 2022.
A review of material costs to understand the increase will be reviewed before the
end of April.

Page 52

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial
5.5 Qualis Living

Page 53

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial
Qualis Living
Month
Oct-21
Nov-21
Dec-21
Jan-22
Feb-22
Mar-22
Apr-22
May-22
Jun-22
Jul-22
Aug-22
Sep-22

Sales
111,839
136,101
250,702
294,657
203,151
202,689

-

Costs
56,939
52,295
351,863 168,738
81,321
589,612 -

TOTAL
TARGET
VARIANCE

-

Net Profit
54,900
83,806
101,162
125,919
121,830
386,923

101,629
248,299
349,929

Items to note:



The delays in finding and investing in additional local regeneration and income
earning assets is increasingly pronounced.
The impact of the periodic payment of loan interest is evident this month. This
impact will be smoothed in subsequent reports.

Actions



A more vigorous and disciplined approach to reviewing and discussing asset
investment opportunities now takes place and around four possible investment
opportunities have been identified.
Rephasing of interest to be actioned for next quarter’s report.

Page 54

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial

6. Balance Sheets
6.1

A simple summary view of each of the company balance sheets is shown below. The
increasing net worth of the Qualis Group should be noted as the impact of initial loan
financing diminishes.

6.2

Overall Qualis is due to have balance sheets with net worth within five years of
operation, i.e. in 2024/25.

Qualis All Companies
Net assets and liabilities

-4,330,984

Total Capital Employed

-4,330,984

Qualis Living
Net assets and liabilities

-1,061,246

Total Capital Employed

-1,061,246

Qualis Management
Net assets and liabilities

-441,474

Total Capital Employed

-441,474

Qualis Group
Net assets and liabilities

133,907

Total Capital Employed

133,907

Qualis Commercial
Net assets and liabilities

-2,962,171

Total Capital Employed

-2,962,171

Page 55

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial

7. Cash and Loans
7.1

The cash position of the Group is below target mainly due to a slow down in the call
down and spending of loans compared to the original budget targets and due to
approximately £1m being owed to Qualis by EFDC for work carried out regarding the
Epping Leisure Centre.

7.2

In the original financial plan for this year, based on the business cases that existed at
the time, the aim was to call down the following:
Q1 £m

Q2 £m

Q3 £m

Q4 £m

6

6

6

6

10

5

5

5

Development
Loan Land
Purchase from
EFDC
Development
Loan
Regeneration
Loan
Working Capital
Revolving
Credit Draw
Down
External Loan

16

Total
Grand Total

33

7.3

1

1

5
11

11

The actual and/or predicted call down of loans is shown overleaf:

Page 56

17
72

Qualis Group, Qualis Living, Qualis Management, Qualis Commercial

Q1 £m

Q2 £m

Development
Loan Land
Purchase from
EFDC
Development
Loan
Regeneration
Loan
Working Capital
Revolving
Credit Draw
Down
External Loan
Total
Grand Total
7.4

Q3 £m

Q4 £m

14

6

6

10

15
2

5
0

30

0

28
58

A meeting will be organised with EFDC to agree timings on outstanding loans, the
application of these loans to additional agreed development projects, e.g., Pyrles
Lane, so the arrangement continue to offer business opportunity to Qualis and
immediate financial benefit to EFDC.

8. Summary going concern statement
The underlying trend of the performance of all Qualis companies is considered satisfactory
and therefore all Qualis companies should be considered, “going concerns”.
Finance
20/04/2022 (approved for release by the Qualis Board)

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

